
 

 

AGENDA 

 

 PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 

 

6:00 p.m., Tuesday, August 9, 2016 

 

COMMITTEE ROOM 

 

Room 239, City Hall 

__________________________________________ 

 

 COMMITTEE MEMBERS: Council Member Dan Besse, Chair 

     Council Member Derwin L. Montgomery, Vice Chair 

     Council Member Robert C. Clark 

     Council Member James Taylor, Jr. 

 

 

GENERAL AGENDA 

 

G-1. CONSIDERATION OF STREET CLOSING PETITIONS: 

 

a. PETITION TO CLOSE AND ABANDON METROPOLITAN DRIVE (EAST 

WARD) – Petition of United Metropolitan Missionary Baptist Church. Public 

Hearing: September 19, 2016.  

 

b. PETITION TO CLOSE AND ABANDON DESHLER STREET (EAST WARD) 

– Petition of Piney Grove Baptist Church. Public Hearing: September 19, 2016. 

 

c. PETITION TO CLOSE AN ABANDON A PORTION OF A 10’ ALLEY 

LOCATED BEHIND SPRINGDALE AVENUE (NORTHWEST WARD) – 

Petition of Mr. & Mrs. Burton Reifler. Public Hearing: September 19, 2016.  

 

d. PETITION TO CLOSE AND ABANDON A PORTION OF A 15’ ALLEY 

LOCATED NORTH OF 12 ½ STREET (EAST WARD) – Petition of New 

Jerusalem Baptist Church. Public Hearing: September 19, 2016. 

 



AGENDA August 9, 2016 Page 2 

 

 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

C-1. RESOLUTION APPROVING THE NOMINATION OF MOSES ALEXANDER “MO” 

LUCAS TO THE CITIZEN’S MEMORIAL WALL AT NEW EVERGREEN 

CEMETERY. 

 

C-2. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS RELATED TO THE OLD SALEM 

INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT (SOUTH WARD): 

 

a. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 

CHANGE ORDERS WITH STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC. FOR 

ADDITIONAL PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES AND 

CONSTRUCTION SERVICES FOR THE OLD SALEM INFRASTRUCTURE 

IMPROVEMENT PROJECT. 

 

b. ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR 

THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA FOR THE FISCAL 

YEAR 2016-2017. 

 

C-3. ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 26 OF THE CITY CODE REGARDING 

GARBAGE AND TRASH. 

 

C-4. RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE NORTH CAROLINA HOUSE CONTINGENCY 

FUNDS FOR THE DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS ALONG HIGH POINT ROAD. 

 

C-5. RESOLUTION APPROVING CITY PARTICIPATION IN A DRAINAGE PROJECT 

ACROSS PRIVATE PROPERTY ACCORDING TO SECTION 75-35 OF THE CITY 

CODE – 4203 Allistair Road (WEST WARD). 

 

C-6. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT WITH MLA DESIGN GROUP, 

INC. FOR PROFESSIONAL ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES FOR THE HAPPY 

HILL PARK RENOVATION PROJECT (EAST WARD). 

 

C-7. APPROVAL OF PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE SUMMARY OF MINUTES - June 

14, 2016. 

 



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: August 9, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Gregory M. Turner, Assistant City Manager 

Council Action Requested: 

 

Consideration of a petition to close and abandon Metropolitan Drive, located between E. Fifth 

Street and E. Third Street. (East Ward) – Petition of United Metropolitan Missionary Baptist 

Church.  
 

Summary of Information:  

   

The City of Winston-Salem has received a petition to close and abandon that portion of 

Metropolitan Drive, located between E. Third Street and E. Fourth Street, and E. Fourth Street 

and E. Fifth Street. The area is bounded on the west by U.S. Highway 52, and on the east by Tax 

PINs 6835-57-2519 & 6835-57-1297.   

        

The Public Works Department has reviewed the request.  There are Planning concerns with 

connectivity if this street is closed.  WSDOT is in agreement with the closure as long as the 

petitioner follow required City driveway policies and obtain the required driveway permits. No 

property owner would be denied access to their property if this petition is approved. Sanitation 

services would not be interrupted. There are no police or fire concerns with the closure of this 

street. There are public utilities located along this street, and easements will need to be retained 

for utilities, drainage, pedestrian traffic, and sidewalk maintenance. 

 

Approval of the petitioner’s request to close and abandon Metropolitan Drive, located between E. 

Fifth Street and E. Third Street is recommended. 

Committee Action: 

 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

-1-

G-1.a.      DRAFT



 

-2-



-3-

G-1.a.      DRAFT



-4-

G-1.a.      DRAFT



-5-

G-1.a.      DRAFT



-6-

G-1.a.      DRAFT



HIG
HL

AN
D

AV

N M L
KING JR

DR_SB52 RA

WO
OD

LA
ND

 AV

E THIRD ST

E SECOND ST

E FIFTH ST

HIG
HL

AN
D A

V

NB 52

E FOURTH ST

MA
PLE

 ST

NB
 52

_E 
3R

D S
T R

A
ME

TR
OP

OL
ITA

N D
R

SB 52
STREET CLOSURE PETITION: METROPOLITAN DRIVE BETWEEN E. FIFTH ST & E. THIRD ST

Petition of United Metropolitan Missionary Baptist Church

Do
cu

me
nt 

Pa
th:

 G
:\A

llis
on

 W
\R

oa
d C

los
ure

s\M
etr

op
oli

tan
 D

r -
 20

16
\M

etr
op

oli
tan

 D
r - 

20
16

.m
xd

µ1 inch = 150 feet

^

£¤52

United Metropolitan
Church

PIN: 6835-57-2519

United Metropolitan
Church

PIN: 6835-57-1297

Area Petitioned
for Closure

Area Petitioned
for Closure

-7-

G
-1.a.      D

R
A

FT



 

-8-



E THIRD ST

E SECOND ST

E FIFTH ST

HIG
HL

AN
D

AV
HIG

HL
AN

D A
V

N M L
KING JR

DR_SB52 RA

NB 52

E FOURTH ST

MA
PLE

 ST

NB
 52

_E 
3R

D S
T R

A

WO
OD

LA
ND

 AV

ME
TR

OP
OL

ITA
N D

R

SB 52
STREET CLOSURE PETITION: METROPOLITAN DRIVE BETWEEN E. FIFTH ST & E. THIRD ST

Petition of United Metropolitan Missionary Baptist Church

Do
cu

me
nt 

Pa
th:

 G
:\A

llis
on

 W
\R

oa
d C

los
ure

s\M
etr

op
oli

tan
 D

r -
 20

16
\M

etr
op

oli
tan

 D
r - 

20
16

.m
xd

µ1 inch = 150 feet

^

£¤52

United Metropolitan
Church

PIN: 6835-57-2519

United Metropolitan
Church

PIN: 6835-57-1297

Area Petitioned
for Closure

Area Petitioned
for Closure

-9-

G
-1.a.      D

R
A

FT



 

-10-



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: August 9, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Gregory M. Turner, Assistant City Manager 

Council Action Requested: 

 

Consideration of a Petition to close and abandon Deshler Street, located off Indiana Avenue. (East 

Ward) – Petition of Piney Grove Baptist Church.  
 

Summary of Information:  

   

The City of Winston-Salem has received a petition to close and abandon Deshler Street, located 

off Indiana Avenue.  Deshler Street is approximately 400 feet in length.  The area is bounded on 

the south, east and west by parcels owned by Piney Grove Baptist Church.   

        

The Public Works Department has reviewed the request.  There are no Planning or WSDOT 

concerns if this street is closed. No property owner would be denied access to their property if this 

petition is approved.  Public utilities are located in this right-of-way and easements should be 

retained. Sanitation services would not be interrupted. There are no police concerns with the 

closure of this street.  The Fire Department would like the petitioners to use a Knox Padlock 

System on the gates to be installed. 

 

Staff recommends approval of the petitioner’s request to close and abandon Deshler Street, 

located off Indiana Avenue, with the stipulation that a Knox Padlock System be installed on gates 

at site. 

Committee Action: 

 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

-11-

G-1.b.      DRAFT



 

-12-



-13-

G-1.b.      DRAFT



-14-

G-1.b.      DRAFT



-15-

G-1.b.      DRAFT



-16-

G-1.b.      DRAFT



-17-

G-1.b.      DRAFT



-18-

G-1.b.      DRAFT



INDIANA AV

SUPERIOR DR

WALCOTT ST

DESHLER ST

GROVE GARDEN DR

INDIANA AV

WALCOTT ST

DESHLER STGROVE GARDEN DR

STREET CLOSURE PETITION: DESHLER STREET
Petition of Piney Grove Baptist Church

Do
cu

me
nt 

Pa
th:

 G
:\A

llis
on

 W
\R

oa
d C

los
ure

s\D
es

hle
r S

t - 
20

16
\D

es
hle

r S
t - 

for
 PW

CM
.m

xd

µ1 inch = 100 feet

^

Piney Grove Baptist Church
PINS: 6827-47-8892,

6827-47-9742,
6827-47-9647,
6827-47-9652,
6827-47-9557,
6827-47-9552,

& 6827-47-9455

Piney Grove Baptist Church
PINs: 6827-47-8812,

6827-47-7627,
6827-47-7566,
6827-47-7571.

& 6827-47-7487

-19-

G
-1.b.      D

R
A

FT



 

-20-



INDIANA AV

SUPERIOR DR

WALCOTT ST

DESHLER ST

GROVE GARDEN DR

STREET CLOSURE PETITION: DESHLER STREET
Petition of Piney Grove Baptist Church

Do
cu

me
nt 

Pa
th:

 G
:\A

llis
on

 W
\R

oa
d C

los
ure

s\D
es

hle
r S

t - 
20

16
\D

es
hle

r S
t - 

for
 PW

CM
.m

xd

µ1 inch = 100 feet

^

Piney Grove Baptist Church
PINS: 6827-47-8892,

6827-47-9742,
6827-47-9647,
6827-47-9652,
6827-47-9557,
6827-47-9552,

& 6827-47-9455

Piney Grove Baptist Church
PINs: 6827-47-8812,

6827-47-7627,
6827-47-7566,
6827-47-7571.

& 6827-47-7487

-21-

G
-1.b.      D

R
A

FT



 

-22-



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: August 09, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Gregory M. Turner, Assistant City Manager 

Council Action Requested: 

 

Consideration of a petition to close and abandon a portion of a 10’ Alley located behind 437 

Springdale Avenue, off of Buena Vista Road (Northwest Ward) – Petition of Mr. & Mrs. Burton 

Reifler.  
 

Summary of Information:  

   

The City of Winston-Salem has received a petition to close and abandon a portion of a 10’ Alley 

located behind 437 Springdale Avenue. The area petitioned for closure is an unopened 10-foot 

right-of-way, located behind 437 Springdale Avenue, between Buena Vista Road and Carolina 

Circle.  This right-of-way is approximately 109 feet in length.  The area is bounded on the East by 

Tax PIN 6825-49-2183, on the west by Tax PIN 6825-49-1113, and on the north by Tax PIN 

6825-49-2311.   

        

The Public Works Department has reviewed the request.  There are no Planning or WSDOT 

concerns if this right-of-way is closed.  No property owner would be denied access to their 

property if this petition is approved.  There are no public utilities located in this right-of-way. 

Sanitation services will not be interrupted. 

 

Approval of the petitioner’s request to close and abandon a portion of a 10’ Alley located behind 

437 Springdale Avenue is recommended. 

 

 

 

 

Committee Action: 

 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

-23-

G-1.c.      DRAFT



 

-24-



-25-

G-1.c.      DRAFT



-26-

G-1.c.      DRAFT



-27-

G-1.c.      DRAFT



-28-

G-1.c.      DRAFT



-29-

G-1.c.      DRAFT



-30-

G-1.c.      DRAFT



BIS
CA

YN
E S

T

SPR
ING

DA
LE 

AV
WILEY AV

VIRGINIA RD

CAROLINA CR

BUENA VISTA RD

HO
LID

AY
 ST

STREET CLOSURE PETITION: 10' ALLEY BEHIND 437 SPRINGDALE AVE
Petition of Mr. & Mrs. Burton Reifler

Do
cu

me
nt 

Pa
th:

 G
:\A

llis
on

 W
\R

oa
d C

los
ure

s\S
pri

ng
da

le 
Av

e -
 20

16
\S

pri
ng

da
le 

Av
e -

 20
16

.m
xd

µ1 inch = 125 feet

^

Burton V. Reifler
PIN: 6825-49-2183

Burton V. Reifler
PIN: 6825-49-1113

Renate E. Meier
PIN: 6825-49-2311

Area Petitioned
for Closure

-31-

G
-1.c.      D

R
A

FT



 

-32-



BIS
CA

YN
E S

T

SPR
ING

DA
LE 

AV
WILEY AV

VIRGINIA RD

CAROLINA CR

BUENA VISTA RD

HO
LID

AY
 ST

STREET CLOSURE PETITION: 10' ALLEY BEHIND 437 SPRINGDALE AVE 
Petition of Mr. & Mrs. Burton Reifler

Do
cu

me
nt 

Pa
th:

 G
:\A

llis
on

 W
\R

oa
d C

los
ure

s\S
pri

ng
da

le 
Av

e -
 20

16
\S

pri
ng

da
le 

Av
e -

 20
16

.m
xd

µ1 inch = 125 feet

^

Burton V. Reifler
PIN: 6825-49-2183

Burton V. Reifler
PIN: 6825-49-1113

Renate E. Meier
PIN: 6825-49-2311

Area Petitioned
for Closure

-33-

G
-1.c.      D

R
A

FT



 

-34-



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: August 9, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Gregory M. Turner, Assistant City Manager 

Council Action Requested: 

 

Consideration of a petition to close and abandon a portion of a 15’ Alley located north of 12 ½ 

Street, and lying between North Jackson Avenue and North Dunleith Avenue. (East Ward) – 

Petition of New Jerusalem Baptist Church.  
 

Summary of Information:  

   

The City of Winston-Salem has received a petition to close and abandon a portion of a 15’ Alley 

located north of 12 ½ Street, and lying between North Jackson Avenue and North Dunleith 

Avenue.  The portion of the alley petitioned for closure is approximately 100 feet in length.  The 

area is bounded on the west by Tax PINs 6836-71-7239 & 6836-71-7334 and on the east by Tax 

PINs 6836-71-8395 & 6836-71-8391 and on the south and east by Tax PIN 6836-71-8295.   

        

The Public Works Department has reviewed the request.  There are no Planning or WSDOT 

concerns if this right-of-way is closed. No property owner would be denied access to their 

property if this petition is approved.  There are no public utilities located in this alleyway. 

Sanitation services will not be interrupted by this closure. 

 

Approval of the petitioner’s request to close and abandon a portion of a 15’ Alley located north of 

12 ½ Street, and lying between North Jackson Avenue and North Dunleith Avenue is 

recommended. 

Committee Action: 

 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

-35-

G-1.d.      DRAFT



 

-36-



-37-

G-1.d.      DRAFT



-38-

G-1.d.      DRAFT



-39-

G-1.d.      DRAFT



-40-

G-1.d.      DRAFT



-41-

G-1.d.      DRAFT



 

-42-



N J
AC

KSO
N A

V

E TWELFTH AND
ONE-HALF ST

CORNELIUS CT
N D

UN
LEI

TH
 AV

ALLEY CLOSURE PETITION: 15' ALLEY NORTH OF 12 AND ONE HALF STREET
Petition of New Jerusalem Baptist Church

Do
cu

me
nt 

Pa
th:

 G
:\A

llis
on

 W
\R

oa
d C

los
ure

s\1
2.5

 S
t - 

20
16

\12
.5 

St
 - 2

01
6- 

for
 PW

CM
.m

xd

µ1 inch = 75 feet

^

Area Petitioned
for Closure

New Jerusalem
Baptist Church

PINs: 6836-71-7334
& 6836-71-7239

New Jerusalem
Baptist Church

PINs: 6836-71-8395,
6836-71-8391,

& 6836-71-8295

-43-

G
-1.d.      D

R
A

FT



 

-44-



N J
AC

KSO
N A

V

E TWELFTH AND
ONE-HALF ST

CORNELIUS CT
N D

UN
LEI

TH
 AV

ALLEY CLOSURE PETITION: 15' ALLEY NORTH OF 12 AND ONE HALF STREET
Petition of New Jerusalem Baptist Church

Do
cu

me
nt 

Pa
th:

 G
:\A

llis
on

 W
\R

oa
d C

los
ure

s\1
2.5

 S
t - 

20
16

\12
.5 

St
 - 2

01
6- 

for
 PW

CM
.m

xd

µ1 inch = 75 feet

^

Area Petitioned
for Closure

New Jerusalem
Baptist Church

PINs: 6836-71-7334
& 6836-71-7239

New Jerusalem
Baptist Church

PINs: 6836-71-8395,
6836-71-8391,

& 6836-71-8295

-45-

G
-1.d.      D

R
A

FT



 

-46-



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: July 22, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Ben Rowe, Assistant City Manager 

Council Action Requested: 

Consideration of a Resolution Approving the Nomination of Moses Alexander “Mo” Lucas to 

the Citizen’s Memorial Wall at New Evergreen Cemetery. 
 

Summary of Information:  

 

Moses Alexander "Mo" Lucas served the Winston-Salem community and mentored countless 

young men for more than 60 years through his work at the Patterson Avenue and Winston Lake 

Family YMCA.  After retiring from the United States Army, Mr. Lucas joined the Patterson 

Avenue YMCA as a volunteer in 1954 and later as a full-time employee in 1960.  He was best 

known for his mentoring of young men through his creation of a step team, which was 

distinguished by their fine attire and performances in community parades and events.  The Mo 

Lucas Community Foundation's Yette Dancers and Boss Drummers have carried on his legacy of 

service to the community's youth.  For the last few years, the community has honored Mr. Lucas' 

service through the Annual Moses "Mo" Lucas Father's Day Parade and Cookout. 

 

Mr. Lucas passed away on June 21, 2016 at the age of 89.  In recognition of his distinguished 

service to Winston-Salem and its youth, Mayor Pro Tempore Burke has nominated Mr. Lucas to 

the Citizen’s Memorial Wall at New Evergreen Cemetery.  The attached resolution approves the 

nomination of Mr. Lucas by the City Council’s Public Works Committee. 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

 

-47-

C-1.      DRAFT



 

-48-



RESOLUTION APPROVING THE NOMINATION OF MOSES ALEXANDER “MO” 

LUCAS TO THE CITIZEN’S MEMORIAL WALL 

AT NEW EVERGREEN CEMETERY 

 

 

 WHEREAS, Moses Alexander "Mo" Lucas served the Winston-Salem community and 

mentored countless young men for more than 60 years through his work at the Patterson Avenue 

and Winston Lake Family YMCA; and 

WHEREAS, after retiring from the United States Army, Mr. Lucas joined the Patterson 

Avenue YMCA as a volunteer in 1954 and later as a full-time employee in 1960; and  

 WHEREAS, he was best known for his mentoring of young men through his creation of 

a step team, which was distinguished by their fine attire and performances in community parades 

and events; and 

WHEREAS, the Mo Lucas Community Foundation's Yette Dancers and Boss Drummers 

have carried on his legacy of service to the community's youth; and 

WHEREAS, for the last few years, the community has honored Mr. Lucas's service 

through the Annual Moses "Mo" Lucas Father's Day Parade and Cookout; and 

WHEREAS, Mr. Lucas passed away on June 21, 2016 at the age of 89; and 

WHEREAS, in recognition of his distinguished service to Winston-Salem and its youth, 

Mayor Pro Tempore Vivian H. Burke has nominated Mr. Lucas to the Citizen’s Memorial Wall 

at New Evergreen Cemetery. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Public Works Committee of the 

City Council hereby approves the nomination of Moses Alexander “Mo” Lucas to the Citizen’s 

Memorial Wall at New Evergreen Cemetery. 

-49-

C-1.      DRAFT



 

-50-



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: August 9, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Gregory M. Turner, Assistant City Manager 

Council Action Requested: 

  
Consideration of Items Related to the Old Salem Infrastructure Improvement Project.  

a) Consideration of a Resolution Authorizing the City Manager to Approve Change Orders 
with Stantec Consulting Services Inc. for Professional Engineering Services and 
Construction Services; 

b) Project Budget Ordinance Amendment to Appropriate Funds for Project Expenditures. 

Summary of Information:  

 
On February 16, 2015, Council approved a Professional Engineering Services Contract with 
Stantec Consulting Services Inc. for assistance with the Old Salem Bond Project. This contract 
included professional engineering services for planning, engineering design and project 
oversight. Tasks included conducting public involvement meetings, project coordination with the 
Forsyth County Historic Resources Commission (HRC) for a Certificate of Appropriateness and 
the production of design plans for the construction of this project. The original contract for 
$170,000 was executed April 14, 2015.  
 
Five project goals and objectives were identified and refined through the planning process: 
 

1. Reduce the potential for injury due to uneven and broken sidewalks. 
2. Maintain consistency with historic preservation requirements. 
3. Remove and replace damaged or missing trees.  
4. Meet design requirements under ADA guidelines for historic districts. 
5. Provide improved street lighting for safety, energy savings and reduced maintenance. 

 
Committee Action: 
 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 
 
 

-51-

C-2.      DRAFT



Respecting the historic significance of the Old Salem District is a top priority. Achieving the 
project objectives has required a significantly different approach and additional efforts in 
planning and design than that of a typical sidewalk and streetlighting project. The consultant has 
identified design concepts that will meet the project objectives and reduce long-term 
maintenance costs. The design elements of this project will guide the ongoing maintenance needs 
of the entire district and staff recommends the additional efforts to ensure the project success. 
 
A change order for the project design and HRC application includes four additional tasks: 
electrical design for streetlighting, installation of a Klingstone sidewalk test application, 
revisions to the HRC COA documentation to include the final designs, and bidding services.  
 
The original contract included supplemental lighting provided by using existing fixture and pole 
types. Old Salem, Inc. manages, procures and maintains the existing streetlight. This 
maintenance is a burden due to the maintenance challenges of the fixtures and poles. Issues with 
the existing fixtures are water intrusion, light pollution into residences, and difficulty in 
procurement. Electrical wiring is buried without conduit and the concrete poles are a challenge to 
replace as they too are buried in concrete. With great effort, Stantec has identified modern 
fixtures that can be fabricated to closely resemble the existing fixtures that the City will be able 
to procure, install and maintain. The proposed fixture will address the many maintenance issues 
and with LED light will provide better output and coverage, energy savings, and reduced light 
pollution. Stantec has also identified a metal pole with similar shape and proportions. Further 
research of this commercially available pole should be considered for the maintenance benefits. 
This additional task will provide the City with the ability to simplify the many components of the 
Old Salem streetlight system and provide a consistent, safer, and more reliable streetlight system.  
 
Sidewalk maintenance and repair in areas with large trees is a hazardous issue to be addressed. 
Project stakeholders also desire keeping as many of the existing trees as possible. Maintenance 
of brick and stone sidewalk over tree roots is an ongoing maintenance issue and is a very short-
term solution as the roots continue to push sidewalk up. Klingstone Paths is a sidewalk product 
used in historic areas such as Colonial Williamsburg, James Madison’s Montpelier, and the 
Booker T. Washington National Monument. This product was introduced at the public meetings 
as a method to address safe ADA pedestrian access while maintaining the existing trees to the 
greatest extent possible. When trees naturally age out and are removed, new trees will be placed 
in larger tree pits with structural soil to encourage roots to grow downward. At that time, the 
Klingstone would be replaced with brick sidewalks. Klingstone Paths has been approved by the 
HRC for a patio in the district, but the color of the existing patio is not appropriate for the public 
sidewalk area due to the coloring. Project stakeholders have asked for a full-scale mock-up of the 
Klingstone Path temporary sidewalk installation for the HRC to review. Stantec and the City 
requested an estimate from a local vendor. This estimate was much greater than expected. This 
approach could have broader applications citywide to address tree and sidewalk conflicts. As 
such, we are recommending City staff be trained on the installation methods and install the test 
areas. Stantec will plan the project approach, select the location, provide a materials list, and 
provide full-time assistance and oversight of the installation. 
 
The above two additional services will result in changes to the HRC application previously 
prepared. This will include the Klingstone mock-up, lamppost option research, proposed new 
electrical service to new streetlights, and brick sample boards with side-by-side comparison 
photographs. The final project designs, specifications and cost estimates will also be revised. 

-52-

C-2.      DRAFT



 
The last task in the change order one is the provision of bidding services. Due to the historic 
elements, this project requires attention to the contractor’s work quality, traffic control planning, 
and managing stakeholder and public expectations. Stantec will assist the City through the 
bidding process by providing all bidding documents, participating a mandatory pre-bid meeting, 
issuing addenda as needed to interpret or clarify the bid documents, attend the bid opening and 
prepare the bid tabulation, and assist in the evaluation of bids and recommendation of award. 
 
A fee of $96,200 has been submitted by Stantec Consulting Services Inc. to provide professional 
engineering services for the four additional tasks and project management. Staff believes this fee 
is fair and reasonable based on the scope of services to be provided. This work is estimated to 
take 4 months. 
 
A second change order is also proposed to see the project through to completion. Construction 
administration and observation services are proposed due to the many historically significant 
elements of the project. The project will require a high level of attention to the contractor’s work 
quality, review and approval of mock-up installations, traffic control issues, and coordination 
with stakeholders, the public and utility owners during construction. The scope includes 
providing construction drawings, conducting pre-construction meeting, review construction shop 
drawing submittals from contractors for compliance with the contract drawings, reviewing 
contractor schedule and construction staging and advising the City of acceptability, and 
reviewing contractor mock-ups and advising of acceptability. Stantec will also issue 
interpretations and clarification of the contract documents, and prepare change orders when 
significant revisions are required. They will also conduct monthly progress meetings and prepare 
meeting minutes.  
 
Another important element is observation of work method. Stantec will provide full-time 
observation for the first two months. City staff will also be onsite to observe best practice for 
installation. Stantec will then provide part-time observations for the remaining contract duration 
which is anticipated at 5 months. The Engineer will make periodic visits to the site and conduct 
final inspection of the work. 
 
Upon completion of the project, Stantec will prepare record drawings from the contractor’s 
marked up drawings showing the constructed sidewalk repairs and replacements, tree 
replacements and streetlight installations. 
 
The fee for the above scope of work on a not-to-exceed time and materials fee basis is $159,400. 
Staff believes this fee is fair and reasonable based on the services to be provided. 
 
Funds are available for both change orders totaling $255,600 in the City Reserve Bond Funds. 
Attached is a Resolution authorizing the city manager to approve the proposed change orders and 
a Project Budget Ordinance to appropriate funds for the project expenditures. 

-53-

C-2.      DRAFT



 

-54-



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE CHANGE 

ORDERS WITH STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES, INC. FOR ADDITIONAL 

PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES AND CONSTRUCTION SERVICES FOR 

THE OLD SALEM INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
 
 

WHEREAS, Council authorized the City Manager to enter into an agreement with 

Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. for professional engineering services for the Old Salem 

Infrastructure Improvement Project on February 16, 2015 and the contract was executed on April 

14, 2015; and 

WHEREAS, achieving the project objectives has required a significantly different 

approach and requires additional efforts in planning and design; and 

WHEREAS, the design elements of this project will guide the ongoing maintenance 

needs of the historic district and staff recommends the additional efforts to ensure the project 

success; and 

WHEREAS, Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. has provided a scope of work to include 

additional tasks for electrical design for streetlighting, installation of a Klingstone sidewalk test 

application, revisions to the HRC COA documentation to include the final designs, and bidding 

services for a fee not-to-exceed $96,200; and 

WHEREAS, construction administration and observation services are proposed due to 

the many historically significant elements of the project; and 

WHEREAS, the project will require a high level of attention to the contractor’s work 

quality, review and approval of mock-up installations, traffic control issues, and coordination 

with stakeholders, the public and utility owners during construction; and  

WHEREAS, Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. has provided a scope of work for 

construction administration, project observation services, and record drawings for a fee not-to-

exceed $159,400; and 

-55-

C-2.a.      DRAFT



WHEREAS, staff believes the above fees to be fair and reasonable; and  

WHEREAS, funds for these change orders are available in Capital Improvement 

Reserves. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Council hereby 

authorize the City Manager and City Secretary to enter into an agreement with Stantec 

Consulting Services, Inc. to provide additional professional engineering and construction 

observation and administrative services for the Old Salem Infrastructure Improvement Project 

for a total fees of $255,600. 

-56-

C-2.a.      DRAFT



 ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE 

 CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA 

 FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017 
 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Winston-Salem that 

the Project Budget Ordinance for the Fiscal Year 2016-2017 be amended to transfer capital 

contingency funds for the Old Salem Infrastructure project. 

SECTION 1.   That the Project Budget Ordinance of the City of Winston-Salem, adopted 

on June 20, 2016, shall be further amended by changing the expenditure appropriations in the 

following fund. 

Capital Projects Fund 

 

 Transportation Projects   

    2014 GO Bond - Old Salem Infrastructure $255,600  

    

 Capital Improvement Reserve   

    Capital Contingency -255,600  

    

 Total Capital Projects Fund Expenditures $0  

  
 

  
  

SECTION 2. That this amendment to the Project Budget Ordinance shall become 

effective as of the date of adoption. 

-57-

C-2.b.      DRAFT



 

-58-



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: July 26, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Gregory Turner, Assistant City Manager 

Council Action Requested:  

 

Amendment to Chapter 26, Section 26-3 of the City Code pertaining to the Bulk Container 

Commercial program to require disposal of trash within bulk and approved non-bulk containers 

to avoid the accumulation of trash in and around the containers which creates a public health 

hazard.  

  
 

Summary of Information: Some multi-family complexes utilize bulk containers (dumpsters) as 

a method of managing waste generated by occupants. Weekly collections are necessary to assure 

that waste has been properly contained and removed in order to maintain a healthy environment 

for those living in the facility. 

 

The City has recently been notified of problems at several multi-family complexes where the 

dumpsters have not been serviced due to payment issues. Staff has investigated the concerns and 

notified management that collections should take place within a designated time period.  

 

Some management groups have complied and removed the waste and others have failed to 

provide the service necessary to assure a clean and healthy environment. In the cases where the 

public health has been judged to be at risk, staff has cleaned up the facilities in order to restore a 

clean environment for the occupants.  

 

Staff is asking Council to consider amending Chapter 26 section 26-3 of the City ordinance to 

explicitly require all multi-family complexes to provide dumpster collections weekly and to 

explicitly allow the department to bill the complex for all cost associated with the clean-up 

process. Staff is also asking permission to move forward with the clean-up process after 

providing a specific response time period to management to resolve the problem (two hours). 

  

 

Committee Action: 
 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

 

-59-

C-3.      DRAFT



 

-60-



ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 26 REGARDING GARBAGE AND TRASH 

Section 1. Section 26-3 Bulk container and other receptacles. is hereby amended to read as 

follows:  

“Sec. 26-3. - Bulk container and other receptacles. 

(a) Required. Occupants, proprietors or owners of single-family residential units, 
multiple-family residential units and retail and commercial establishments where refuse is 
accumulated shall provide a sufficient number of refuse receptacles or bulk containers to 
contain all such refuse which may accumulate between the times of successive collections.  

 

(b) Maintenance; location. Each person mentioned in subsection (a) of this section shall 
cause the receptacle required by this section to be tightly covered at all times and maintained 
in a manner to prevent the creation of a nuisance or unsanitary condition. Receptacles that 
are broken, or otherwise fail to meet the requirements of this section, shall be replaced with 
acceptable receptacles. Residents with an exemption from curbside collection shall store 
receptacles in a place easily accessible to the collectors. They shall not be placed in garages, 
or inside fences or other enclosed premises unless access to the receptacles may be by means 
of a gate or the like, obviating the need for the receptacles to be lifted upon and over the 
enclosure. If a receptacle is placed within an enclosure, no other item may be stored along 
with it.  

 

(c) Number. Not more than three 96-gallon roll-out receptacles shall be emptied from the 
same premises at one collection.  

 

(d) Mandatory use of bulk containers.  

 

(1) Business, commercial and retail establishments generating more than three 
32-gallon refuse receptacles of refuse per week;  

 

(2) Any apartment development which contains more than ten individual 
dwelling units; 

 

(3) Any mobile home park, as defined in the city zoning ordinance, constructed 
or approved after adoption of the ordinance from which this chapter is derived 
and which contains more than ten lots; and  

 

(4) Residential condominium, townhouse or cluster home developments with a 
density of more than eight units per acre.  

 

The assistant city manager/public works or his designee shall have the authority to: (i) 
require the use of bulk containers and the disposal of trash therein on a weekly basis or more 

-61-

C-3.      DRAFT



often if necessary to avoid a public health nuisance by any residential developments for public 
health or safety reasons; or may allow (ii) require the use of approved non-bulk containers or 
receptacles by residential developments where bulk containers are not feasible or pose a public 
health or safety hazard, as determined by the assistant city manager/public works or his 
designee; and (iii) prohibit the accumulation of trash outside the bulk container or approved 
non-bulk container, which accumulation is hereby declared a nuisance. Due to the health issues 
associated with said nuisance, the assistant city manager/public works or his designee shall 
attempt to provide the property owner with a two-hour written notice of the nuisance and 
violation by hand delivery or by posting the subject property with said notice and shall afford, 
by way of said notice, the property owner an opportunity to abate the nuisance and the 
conditions that lead to the nuisance such as the lack of capacity within the container. If the 
property owner does not abate the nuisance within said two hour time period, the assistant city 
manager/public works or his designee may abate the nuisance by removing the trash within and 
around the bulker container or approved non-bulk container. Pursuant to G.S. 160A-193 (a) and 
(b), the expense of the action shall become a lien on the real property from which the trash was 
removed and on any other real property owned by the person in default within the city limits or 
within one mile of the city limits, except for the person's primary residence unless that is where 
the violation occurred. Non-profit organizations or agencies approved by the assistant city 
manager/public works or his designee to use 96-gallon roll out containers instead of bulk 
containers shall pay the city an annual fee for collection in the amount of $100.00 per roll out 
container.  

(e) Violations. It shall be a violation of this section for anyone to fail to place and 
maintain garbage, refuse and yard trash receptacles or bulk containers as specified in this 
section. A civil penalty of $50.00 per violation shall be assessed against the violator or 
owner of the premises where the violation occurred and notification of such assessment shall 
be given to the property owner or violator within five business days after discovery of the 
violation by the city.  

 

(f) Use of yard trash mobile roll-out containers. Residents shall use approved roll-out 
containers only for yard trash. These containers will be collected year round. The cost of 
collection per container is $60.00 per year, or any part thereof, except that a reduced fee of 
$50.00 shall be allowed once to the same occupant(s) at any given address when the 
collection service is purchased between January 1 and June 30.  

 

(g) Use of recycling mobile containers. Residents shall use city provided roll-out 
containers only for recycling. These containers will be collected year round. Service for one 
additional recycling container may be purchased for a fee of $30.00 per year.  

 

Section 2.  This ordinance shall become effective upon adoption.  

 

-62-

C-3.      DRAFT



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: August 9, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Gregory M. Turner, Assistant City Manager 

Council Action Requested: 

  
Consideration of a Resolution of support for the North Carolina House Contingency Funds for 
the Drainage Improvements Along High Point Road. 

Summary of Information:  

 
The North Carolina Department of Transportation is widening Union Cross Road in Winston-
Salem which calls for a ditch section to be created along High Point Road at Union Cross Road.  
Union Cross Moravian Church is located in the northwest quadrant of this intersection and 
desires to have the ditch section repaired with a piped stormwater system under a gentle swale in 
order to facilitate easier mowing of the church lawn.  Because the project’s budget is not able to 
accommodate the request, the church has requested available funds from the North Carolina 
Legislature House Contingency funds.  
 
The Speaker of the North Carolina House requires a resolution of support from the City of 
Winston-Salem to provide these funds to the project.  The project will be funded entirely by the 
contingency funds and, therefore no City funding is required or requested. 
 

Committee Action: 
 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 
 
 

-63-

C-4.      DRAFT



Respecting the historic significance of the Old Salem District is a top priority. Achieving the 
project objectives has required a significantly different approach and additional efforts in 
planning and design than that of a typical sidewalk and streetlighting project. The consultant has 
identified design concepts that will meet the project objectives and reduce long-term 
maintenance costs. The design elements of this project will guide the ongoing maintenance needs 
of the entire district and staff recommends the additional efforts to ensure the project success. 
 
A change order for the project design and HRC application includes four additional tasks: 
electrical design for streetlighting, installation of a Klingstone sidewalk test application, 
revisions to the HRC COA documentation to include the final designs, and bidding services.  
 
The original contract included supplemental lighting provided by using existing fixture and pole 
types. Old Salem, Inc. manages, procures and maintains the existing streetlight. This 
maintenance is a burden due to the maintenance challenges of the fixtures and poles. Issues with 
the existing fixtures are water intrusion, light pollution into residences, and difficulty in 
procurement. Electrical wiring is buried without conduit and the concrete poles are a challenge to 
replace as they too are buried in concrete. With great effort, Stantec has identified modern 
fixtures that can be fabricated to closely resemble the existing fixtures that the City will be able 
to procure, install and maintain. The proposed fixture will address the many maintenance issues 
and with LED light will provide better output and coverage, energy savings, and reduced light 
pollution. Stantec has also identified a metal pole with similar shape and proportions. Further 
research of this commercially available pole should be considered for the maintenance benefits. 
This additional task will provide the City with the ability to simplify the many components of the 
Old Salem streetlight system and provide a consistent, safer, and more reliable streetlight system.  
 
Sidewalk maintenance and repair in areas with large trees is a hazardous issue to be addressed. 
Project stakeholders also desire keeping as many of the existing trees as possible. Maintenance 
of brick and stone sidewalk over tree roots is an ongoing maintenance issue and is a very short-
term solution as the roots continue to push sidewalk up. Klingstone Paths is a sidewalk product 
used in historic areas such as Colonial Williamsburg, James Madison’s Montpelier, and the 
Booker T. Washington National Monument. This product was introduced at the public meetings 
as a method to address safe ADA pedestrian access while maintaining the existing trees to the 
greatest extent possible. When trees naturally age out and are removed, new trees will be placed 
in larger tree pits with structural soil to encourage roots to grow downward. At that time, the 
Klingstone would be replaced with brick sidewalks. Klingstone Paths has been approved by the 
HRC for a patio in the district, but the color of the existing patio is not appropriate for the public 
sidewalk area due to the coloring. Project stakeholders have asked for a full-scale mock-up of the 
Klingstone Path temporary sidewalk installation for the HRC to review. Stantec and the City 
requested an estimate from a local vendor. This estimate was much greater than expected. This 
approach could have broader applications citywide to address tree and sidewalk conflicts. As 
such, we are recommending City staff be trained on the installation methods and install the test 
areas. Stantec will plan the project approach, select the location, provide a materials list, and 
provide full-time assistance and oversight of the installation. 
 
The above two additional services will result in changes to the HRC application previously 
prepared. This will include the Klingstone mock-up, lamppost option research, proposed new 
electrical service to new streetlights, and brick sample boards with side-by-side comparison 
photographs. The final project designs, specifications and cost estimates will also be revised. 

-64-

C-4.      DRAFT



 
The last task in the change order one is the provision of bidding services. Due to the historic 
elements, this project requires attention to the contractor’s work quality, traffic control planning, 
and managing stakeholder and public expectations. Stantec will assist the City through the 
bidding process by providing all bidding documents, participating a mandatory pre-bid meeting, 
issuing addenda as needed to interpret or clarify the bid documents, attend the bid opening and 
prepare the bid tabulation, and assist in the evaluation of bids and recommendation of award. 
 
A fee of $96,200 has been submitted by Stantec Consulting Services Inc. to provide professional 
engineering services for the four additional tasks and project management. Staff believes this fee 
is fair and reasonable based on the scope of services to be provided. This work is estimated to 
take 4 months. 
 
A second change order is also proposed to see the project through to completion. Construction 
administration and observation services are proposed due to the many historically significant 
elements of the project. The project will require a high level of attention to the contractor’s work 
quality, review and approval of mock-up installations, traffic control issues, and coordination 
with stakeholders, the public and utility owners during construction. The scope includes 
providing construction drawings, conducting pre-construction meeting, review construction shop 
drawing submittals from contractors for compliance with the contract drawings, reviewing 
contractor schedule and construction staging and advising the City of acceptability, and 
reviewing contractor mock-ups and advising of acceptability. Stantec will also issue 
interpretations and clarification of the contract documents, and prepare change orders when 
significant revisions are required. They will also conduct monthly progress meetings and prepare 
meeting minutes.  
 
Another important element is observation of work method. Stantec will provide full-time 
observation for the first two months. City staff will also be onsite to observe best practice for 
installation. Stantec will then provide part-time observations for the remaining contract duration 
which is anticipated at 5 months. The Engineer will make periodic visits to the site and conduct 
final inspection of the work. 
 
Upon completion of the project, Stantec will prepare record drawings from the contractor’s 
marked up drawings showing the constructed sidewalk repairs and replacements, tree 
replacements and streetlight installations. 
 
The fee for the above scope of work on a not-to-exceed time and materials fee basis is $159,400. 
Staff believes this fee is fair and reasonable based on the services to be provided. 
 
Funds are available for both change orders totaling $255,600 in the City Reserve Bond Funds. 
Attached is a Resolution authorizing the city manager to approve the proposed change orders and 
a Project Budget Ordinance to appropriate funds for the project expenditures. 

-65-

C-4.      DRAFT



 

-66-



RESOLUTION IN SUPPORT OF USE OF NORTH CAROLINA HOUSE 

CONTINGENCY FUNDS FOR THE DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS ALONG HIGH 

POINT ROAD 
 
 

WHEREAS, the North Carolina Department of Transportation is widening Union Cross 

Road in Winston-Salem; and 

WHEREAS, the widening calls for a ditch section to be created along High Point Road 

at Union Cross Road; and 

WHEREAS, the Union Cross Moravian Church at this intersection desires to have the 

ditch section repaired with a piped stormwater system under a gentle wale in order to facilitate 

easier mowing of the church lawn; and 

WHEREAS, the widening project budget is not able to accommodate the church’s 

request but there are funds available in the North Carolina Legislature House Contingency funds 

that could be used to infuse the project with the necessary resources; and 

WHEREAS, the Speaker of the North Carolina House requires a resolution of support 

from the City of Winston-Salem to provide these funds to the project.   

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Mayor and City Council hereby 

express their support for the Speaker of the House to fund the church’s request from the House 

Contingency funds so long as that action does not reduce or delay any other funding scheduled to 

come to the City. 

-67-

C-4.      DRAFT



 

-68-



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: August 9, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Gregory M. Turner, Assistant City Manager 

Council Action Requested: 
 

Approval of City participation in a drainage project across private property according to Section 
75-35 of the City Code. 
 

Summary of Information:  
  
Section 75-35 of the City Code allows for City participation in drainage projects across private 
property with a single owner as long as the project meets certain criteria.  The project must carry 
street water; the residences must have been occupied for at least two years; the drainage 
condition must threaten the structural integrity of the residence, flood the residence or cause 
severe erosion of the drainageway; and the action taken must significantly improve the 
conditions. 
 
The Stormwater Division was contacted by John and Helen Blount who requested assistance to 
repair an eroding drainage system at property located at 4203 Allistair Road. Their problems 
meet the requirements of Section 75-35.  The estimated cost to repair the eroding drainage 
system is $4,700. The property owner would be responsible for 30% ($1,410) and the City's cost 
would be 70% ($3,290).  Staff recommends approval of this project. 

Committee Action: 
 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 

 

-69-

C-5.      DRAFT



 

-70-



RESOLUTION APPROVING CITY PARTICIPATION IN A DRAINAGE PROJECT 

ACROSS PRIVATE PROPERTY – 4203 Allistair Road 

 
 

 WHEREAS, the drainage project at 4203 Allistair Road qualifies for City participation 

according to Section 75-35 of the City Code; and 

 WHEREAS, the property owners are responsible for 30% of the actual cost currently 

estimated at $ 4,700; and 

 WHEREAS, the remaining 70% of the project cost will come from the Stormwater 

budget; and 

 WHEREAS, the storm drainage improvement will not become part of the storm drainage 

system that is maintained by the City. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Mayor and City Council upon the 

recommendation of the Public Works Committee, that the City of Winston-Salem Streets 

Division participate in the drainage project at 4203 Allistair Road. 

 

 

 

-71-

C-5.      DRAFT



 

-72-



!

!

!

!

!

1001 FAIRHOPE PORTER LEON E

4205 ALLISTAIR KING ROBERT B

4203 ALLISTAIR BLOUNT JOHN W

4207 ALLISTAIR HALSEY HARDIN G

4201 ALLISTAIR PRUITT VICTORIA C

4204 ALLISTAIR BRODKIN RICHARD A

1112 CLAVERTON SIMMONS TONY WILLIAM

1108 CLAVERTON CHAN STEPHEN

1104 CLAVERTON PRUITT VICTORIA C

1116 CLAVERTON JANET L JONES REVOCABLE TRUST

1005 FAIRHOPE BRENDLE STEVEN E

4206 ALLISTAIR HAGGERSON GEORGE WILLIAM

1100 CLAVERTON WILSON RICK W

4209 ALLISTAIR DAVIS WILLIAM L

4193 ALLISTAIR FUSSELL JAMES A996 BRYANSPLACE PATTERSON ERIC M

ALLISTAIR

FAIRHOPE 15Reinforced Concrete12Corrugated Metal

4203 Allistair Road 70/30 Exhibit

Ü

0 30 60 90 12015
Feet

Replace 16' of 15" RCP 
and install rip-rap apron.

-73-

C
-5.      D

R
A

FT



 

-74-



City Council – Action Request Form 
 

Date: August 9, 2016 

To: The City Manager 

From: Gregory M. Turner, Assistant City Manager 

Council Action Requested: 

  
Consideration of a resolution authorizing an agreement with MLA Design Group, Inc. for 
professional architectural services for the Happy Hill Park Renovation Project. 
 

Summary of Information:  
  
In line with the City Council’s strategic objective for expanded open space and recreation 
facilities, the Happy Hill Park Renovation Project will provide for the re-development and 
upgrade of Happy Hill Park as part of the overall Southeast Gateway Development Plan.  Last 
year, the City entered into an agreement with MLA Design Group, Inc. (MLA) to develop a 
Master Plan for Happy Hill Park.  Based on a year-long process of public input sessions, survey, 
cost opinions and consensus obtained, recommendation for Phase I improvements have been 
developed, which include: a new eight lane track with two grass fields (one within the track and 
another at a lower level), main pavilion building with restrooms and shelter, spray ground/splash 
park with associated building and restrooms, outdoor basketball courts, playground, associated 
parking areas, renovated trail, sidewalks, seat walls, and landscaping. 
  
The City selects firms to provide architectural, engineering, and surveying services in accordance 

with public policy established in N.C.G.S. §143‑64.31, which provides for a qualifications-based 

selection process. On March 18, 2015, the City received Letters of Interest/Statement of 
Qualifications (LOI/SOQ) to develop the Master Plan from four architectural firms.  A panel 
consisting of the Assistant City Manager, City Engineer, Assistant to the City Manager, 
Recreation and Parks Director and the Parks Superintendent evaluated the proposals.  Based on 
those evaluations, the proposals were ranked and MLA was rated as the most qualified firm to 
develop the Master Plan.     
 
The request for LOI/SOQ’s stated that the City could elect to negotiate with the selected firm to 
perform additional services on the project, including, but not limited to, the preparation of final 
design plans, bid and construction documents, permitting, testing, and construction 
administration services. The request for LOI/SOQ’s indicated that the City reserved this right to 
 
Committee Action: 
 

Committee  Action  

For  Against  

Remarks: 

 
 
 

-75-

C-6.      DRAFT



negotiate for additional work, dependent on the performance of the architect on the initial scope 
of services.  This provision was added in order to reduce the time to design and construct the 
project and to reduce the architectural fees associated with the project. The performance of MLA 
on the initial phase of the project has been satisfactory.  Therefore, City staff recommends 
entering into an agreement with MLA to provide all design phase services for the renovation of 
Happy Hill Park including surveying, bid and construction documents, permitting, and 
construction administration services. 
 
MLA’s proposal meets the 10% M/WBE goal established for this professional service. 
 

In accordance with N.C.G.S. §143‑64.31, the City entered into contract negotiations with MLA, 

which included identifying the full scope of services to be provided and a proposed fee for this 
work.  Based on these negotiations, MLA has submitted a fee proposal of $375,000 (base fee of 
$350,000 and $25,000 for reimbursable expenses and contingency) for architectural, civil, 
survey, landscape, and other services necessary to construct improvements identified in the 
Master Plan.  Based on the total scope of services to be provided, staff believes that this is a fair 
and reasonable fee. 
 
Funds for this work are included in the recently approved bond referendum and funds have been 
previously appropriated for this project.  

 

 

 

-76-

C-6.      DRAFT



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT WITH 

MLA DESIGN GROUP, INC. FOR PROFESSIONAL ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES 

FOR THE HAPPY HILL PARK RENOVATION PROJECT 

   

 

 
WHEREAS, the Winston-Salem City Council has developed a strategic objective for 

expanded open space and recreation facilities; and 

WHEREAS, the Happy Hill Park Renovation Project will provide for the re-

development and upgrade of Happy Hill Park as part of the overall Southeast Gateway 

Development Plan; and 

WHEREAS, the City previously entered into an agreement with MLA Design Group, 

Inc. (MLA) to develop a Master Plan for Happy Hill Park and that plan identified certain 

improvements to the park, including: a new eight lane track with two grass fields (one within the 

track and another at a lower level), main pavilion building with restrooms and shelter, spray 

ground/splash park with associated building & restrooms, outdoor basketball courts, playground, 

associated parking areas, renovated trail, sidewalks, seat walls, and landscaping; and 

WHEREAS, the City selects firms for professional services in accordance with public 

policy established in N.C.G.S. §143‑64.31, which provides for a qualifications-based selection 

process; and 

WHEREAS, on March 18, 2015, the City received Letters of Interest/Statement of 

Qualifications (LOI/SOQ) to perform architectural services for this project from four 

architectural firms; and 

WHEREAS, after a review of these proposals, City staff identified MLA as the most 

qualified firm to provide architectural services for this project; and 

-77-

C-6.      DRAFT



WHEREAS, the request for LOI/SOQ’s indicated that the City reserved this right to 

negotiate for additional work, dependent on the performance of the architect on the initial scope 

of services; and 

WHEREAS, this provision was added in order to reduce the time to design and construct 

the project and to reduce the architectural fees associated with the project; and 

WHEREAS, the performance of MLA on the initial phase of the project has met 

expectations and staff recommends entering into an agreement with MLA to provide all design 

phase services for the renovation of Happy Hill Park including surveying, bid and construction 

documents, permitting, and construction administration services; and 

WHEREAS, the City and MLA have negotiated the full scope of architectural services to 

be provided for the Happy Hill Park improvements; and  

WHEREAS, a fee of $375,000 (base fee of $350,000 and $25,000 for reimbursable 

expenses and contingency) for architectural, civil, survey, landscape, and other services 

necessary to construct improvements identified in the Master Plan; and 

  WHEREAS, based on the total scope of services to be provided, staff believes that this 

is a fair and reasonable fee; and 

WHEREAS, the selection process and fee negotiation followed public policy established 

in N.C.G.S.  §143‑64.31; and 

WHEREAS, funds for these architectural services have been previously appropriated 

and are available in 305-532000-563201. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council that the 

City Manager and City Secretary are authorized to enter into an agreement with MLA Design 

Group, Inc. for professional architectural services for the Happy Hill Park Renovation Project in 

the estimated amount of $375,000. 

-78-

C-6.      DRAFT



-79-

C-7.      DRAFT



-80-

C-7.      DRAFT



-81-

C-7.      DRAFT



-82-

C-7.      DRAFT


	AGENDA
	GENERAL AGENDA
	G-1. CONSIDERATION OF STREET CLOSING PETITIONS:
	a. PETITION TO CLOSE AND ABANDON METROPOLITAN DRIVE (EAST WARD) – Petition of United Metropolitan Missionary Baptist Church. Public Hearing: September 19, 2016. 
	[Street Closure Petition for Metropolitan Dr - CARF.docx]
	[Petition.pdf]
	[Street Closure for Metropolitan Drive.pdf]
	[Street Closure for Metropolitan Drive_Aerial.pdf]

	b. PETITION TO CLOSE AND ABANDON DESHLER STREET (EAST WARD) – Petition of Piney Grove Baptist Church. Public Hearing: September 19, 2016.
	[Street Closure Petition for Deshler St - CARF.docx]
	[Petition.pdf]
	[Street Closure for Deshler St.pdf]
	[Street Closure for Deshler St_Aerial.pdf]

	c. PETITION TO CLOSE AN ABANDON A PORTION OF A 10’ ALLEY LOCATED BEHINDSPRINGDALE AVENUE (NORTHWEST WARD) – Petition of Mr. & Mrs. Burton Reifler. Public Hearing: September 19, 2016. 
	[Right-of-Way Closure for a 10 Alley Behind 437 Springdale Ave - CARF.docx]
	[Petition.pdf]
	[Alley Closure behind 437 Springdale Ave.pdf]
	[Alley Closure behind 437 Springdale Ave_Aerial.pdf]

	d. PETITION TO CLOSE AND ABANDON A PORTION OF A 15’ ALLEY LOCATED NORTH OF 12 ½ STREET (EAST WARD) – Petition of New Jerusalem Baptist Church. Public Hearing: September 19, 2016.
	[Right-of-Way Closure for a portion of a 15 Alley N of 12-5 St - CARF.docx]
	[Petition.pdf]
	[Alley Closure for 15 Alley North of 12 and 1 half St.pdf]
	[Alley Closure for 15 Alley North of 12 and 1 half St_Aerial.pdf]



	??CONSENT AGENDA
	C-1. RESOLUTION APPROVING THE NOMINATION OF MOSES ALEXANDER “MO” LUCAS TO THE CITIZEN’S MEMORIAL WALL AT NEW EVERGREEN CEMETERY.
	[Nomination of Mo Lucas to Citizens Memorial Wall - CARF.doc]
	[Nomination of Mo Lucas to Citizens Memorial Wall - RES.docx]

	C-2. CONSIDERATION OF ITEMS RELATED TO THE OLD SALEM INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT (SOUTH WARD):
	[OldSalemInfrastructureEngineeringContractChangeOrderStantecAugust2016 - CARF.doc]
	a. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE CHANGE ORDERS WITH STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES INC. FOR ADDITIONAL PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES AND CONSTRUCTION SERVICES FOR THE OLD SALEM INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT PROJECT.
	[OldSalemInfrastructureEngineeringContractChangeOrderStantecAugust2016 - Resolution.docx]

	b. ORDINANCE AMENDING THE PROJECT BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR THE CITY OF WINSTON-SALEM, NORTH CAROLINA FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2016-2017.
	[Old Salem Infrastructure Change Order - PBO.docx]


	C-3. ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 26 OF THE CITY CODEREGARDING GARBAGE AND TRASH.
	[CHAPTER 26 REGARDING GARBAGE AND TRASH.carf.doc]
	[ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 26 REGARDING GARBAGE AND TRASH.ord.doc]

	C-4. RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE NORTH CAROLINA HOUSE CONTINGENCY FUNDS FOR THE DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS ALONG HIGH POINT ROAD.
	[UseofHouseContingencyFundsforDrainageImprovementsonHighPointRoadAugust2016 - CARF.doc]
	[UseofHouseContingencyFundsforDrainageImprovementsonHighPointRoadAugust2016 - Resolution.docx]

	C-5. RESOLUTION APPROVINGCITY PARTICIPATION IN A DRAINAGE PROJECT ACROSS PRIVATE PROPERTY ACCORDING TO SECTION 75-35 OF THE CITY CODE–4203 Allistair Road (WEST WARD).
	[Stormwater16 CARF- 70-30_4203 Allistair Rd.doc]
	[Stormwater16- Resolution 4203 Allistair Road 70-30.docx]
	[4203 Allistair Rd 7030 Exhibit.pdf]

	C-6. RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN AGREEMENT WITH MLA DESIGN GROUP, INC. FOR PROFESSIONAL ARCHITECTURAL SERVICES FOR THE HAPPY HILL PARK RENOVATION PROJECT (EAST WARD).
	[MLA Design Group Happy Hill Park Design-CARF.docx]
	[MLA Design Group Happy Hill Park Design-RESOLUTION.docx]

	C-7. APPROVAL OFPUBLIC WORKSCOMMITTEESUMMARY OF MINUTES - June 14, 2016.
	[Public Works Committee Minutes 06142016.pdf]



